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Bef or e: Judge Koutras
Statement of the Case

The proceedi ng concerns a proposal for assessnent of civil
penalty filed by the petitioner against the respondent pursuant
to section 110(a) of the Federal M ne Safety and Health Act of
1977, 30 U.S.C. 820(a), charging the respondent with one all eged
viol ati on of nmandatory safety standard 30 CFR 75.400. Respondent
filed a tinmely answer in the proceedi ngs and a hearing regarding
the petitions was held on Novenber 17, 1981, in Charl eston, West
Virginia, and the parties appeared and partici pated therein.

| ssues

The principal issues presented in this proceeding are (1)
whet her respondent has viol ated the provisions of the Act and
i npl enenting regulation as alleged in the proposal for assessnent
of civil penalty filed in this proceeding, and, if so, (2) the
appropriate civil penalty that should be assessed agai nst the
respondent for the alleged violation based upon the criteria set
forth in section 110(i) of the Act. Additional issues raised by
the parties are identified and di sposed of in the course of this
deci si on.

In determ ning the anmount of a civil penalty assessment,
section 110(i) of the Act requires consideration of the foll ow ng
criteria:
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(1) the operator's history of previous violations, (2) the
appropri ateness of such penalty to the size of the business of
the operator, (3) whether the operator was negligent, (4) the
effect on the operator's ability to continue in business, (5) the
gravity of the violation, and (6) the denonstrated good faith of
the operator in attenpting to achi eve rapid conpliance after
notification of the violation

Applicable Statutory and Regul atory Provi sions

The Federal M ne Safety and Health Act of 1977, P.L.

95-164, 30 U.S.C 0801 et seq.

Section 110(i) of the 1077 Act, 30 U.S.C. 0820(i).

Conmi ssion Rules, 29 CFR 2700.1 et seq.

Sti pul ations

The parties stipulated to the foll ow ng:

1. Respondent Youngstown M nes Corporation owns and
operates the mne in question

2. Respondent is engaged in the business of extracting
coal

3. The inspector who issued the citation in this case
is a duly authorized representative of the Secretary of
Labor .

4. The DeHue M ne is subject to the provisions of the
1977 Federal M ne Safety and Health Act.

5. The presiding adnministrative | aw judge has
jurisdiction to hear and decide this case.

6. The citation at issue in this case was duly served
on a representative of the respondent and it may be
admtted in evidence.

7. An appropriate civil penalty in this case will not
adversely affect respondent's ability to remain in
busi ness.

8. Respondent's 1980 annual coal production was
259, 001 tons.

9. Respondent's history of prior assessed violations
for the 13 nonth period preceding the issuance of the
citation in issue in this case consists of 501
citations.

Di scussi on

Citation 912344, 8/26/80, 30 CFR 75.400, states as foll ows:
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Conbustible materials coal, coal dust, float dust,
oil and grease were allowed to accumul ate on the
11 CM continuous mner and the frames and el ectric
apparatus 0" inches 4" inches in the 1 north
west nmmin section.

Petitioner's Testinony and Evi dence

MSHA | nspect or Ernest Mooney, confirned that he inspected
the m ne in question on August 26, 1980, and issued the citation
charging the respondent with a violation of mandatory safety
standard 75.400. He identified copies of the citation, the
abatement, and his inspector's "narrative statement” which he
filled out (Exhibit P-1). He testified that the area where the
citation issued was an active working section and confirned that
he neasured the coal accumnul ations inside the continuous m ner
nmotor conmpartnment with a standard ruler and that the
accumul ations were "real black”. He determined that the m ner
machi ne was "hot" after opening the conpartment and detecting
heat com ng out of it, but he did not touch the hot nmachine.
Section Foreman Cook was with himat the tine of the inspection
and soneone told himthat the nachi ne had been operated during
the i medi ate previous shift, but he could not recall who told
hi m and he took no notes other than to wite up the citation

I nspect or Mooney testified that he believed the coal
accumul ations which he cited had accumul ated on the nachine
during previous shifts and did not believe that they had "just
occurred"” shortly before his arrival on the scene. The
appl i cabl e accumul ati ons cl ean-up plan required cl ean-up "when
needed”, and he believed that m ne managenent shoul d have been
aware of the accunul ati ons because each working shift in the mne
has a shift supervisor present. Al though M. Money stated that
the section foreman may have informed himthat the machine in
guesti on may have "been down", since he took no notes he could
not confirmthis fact. The citation was abated on August 27,
1980 by anot her i nspector

On cross-exan nation, Inspector Money stated that he left
the m ne surface on August 26 at approximately 7:00 a.m, but was
under ground when he issued the citation. The m ner machi ne was
backed away fromthe working face and appeared to be | ocated just
outby the I ast open crosscut. The face in question was the only
wor ki ng face on the section, and while he observed the nachi ne
operator at the miner he could not recall what he was doing.

Al t hough the nmachi ne was not energized, power was on the trailing
cable and the lights were on, but the notor was not running. He
i ndi cated that the machine has protective shields over the notor
and cabl es, and he inspected both sides of the machine and
detected that the shield on the operator's side of the machine
was m ssing. The shields are usually installed on hinges so that
they can be readily raised to facilitate cl eaning and i nspection
of the notor and cables, but he did not know how many shields are
required to be on the machine.
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I nspect or Mooney testified that he found accumul ati ons of coa
and coal dust on both sides of the machine, and that on the side
opposite the operator he found that the coal accumul ati ons were
mxed in with oil and grease in the notor conpartnent near the
punp notor. He could not recall whether anyone said anything to
hi m about any mechani cal problens with the machi ne and he made no
inquiries as to why the machi ne had been backed away fromthe
fact. The machine was renoved from service, and he remai ned on
the section.

I nspect or Mboney confirned that at the tinme he observed the
machi ne coal was not being mned. He indicated that the nine
operated on three daily 8-hour shifts and that issued the
citation on the second shift which was from4 p.m to 12
m dnight. At the time that he issued the citation he believed
that the mner had been used to mine coal at the face during the
preceding shift, and he stated that had the operator been in the
process of cleaning the machine at the tine he observed it he
woul d not have issued the citation. It was his belief that the
machi ne needed cl eaning, and that he issued the citati on because
of the presence of the accumul ations which he found and the fact
that cl eaning had not been done. (Tr. 15-60).

Respondent' s Testi nony and Evi dence

Paul Cook, presently enployed by the respondent as an
assistant mine foreman, testified that at the tinme the citation
was i ssued by Inspector Money he was enployed as the section
foreman. Hi s previous experience with the respondent includes
service as a UMM mner, nmenber of the safety departnent, and
section boss. M. Cook stated that on the day the citation
i ssued he arrived on the section at approximtely 4:30 p.m, and
that the previous shift foreman advised hi mthat the continuous
m ner which was cited by M. Money had a | eaky hydraulic hose on
the "off-side". The machine was | ocated just outby the [ ast open
break, and after checking the faces M. Cook turned the machine
power on to see what the problemwas. The notor ran for
approximately 5 to 10 seconds when he detected hydraulic oi
spurting out of a two-inch return line which had burst. Since
the m ner could not be operated wi thout any hydraulic oil, he
assigned the m ner operator and his helper to the job of cleaning
up the mner and he observed one shield mssing fromthe notor
panel at the l|ocation where the hose had burst. M. Cook stated
that the miner and his hel per were cleaning the oil accunul ati ons
around the notor area so that an electrician could have access to
the area to change out the hose which had broken

M. Cook testified that after directing that the nmachi ne be
cl eaned up he tel ephoned for a replacenent hose for the nachine
and as he left the area he encountered |Inspector Money. He
informed M. Mooney that the machi ne "was down" and M. Mboney
placed a red closure tag on it. M. Cook then called outside and
ordered that a cl eaning machi ne be brought in so that the machine
could be cleaned up. He also indicated that the machi ne uses a
fire-resistant white enulsion oil which contains
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approxi mately 40% water and that it is MSHA-approved. Although
the machi ne has no fire suppression devices, he stated that none
are required as long as the fire-resistant oil is used.

M. Cook identified a copy of the section foreman's report
(Exhibit R-1) which indicates that no coal was being | oaded
during the shift. He also indicated that the nmine operates two
production shifts and that the third shift is a maintenance
shift. He confirned that the m ner was shut down at 6 p.m, and
he indicated that he was aware of the fact that |nspector MNooney
had i ssued other citations during his inspection of August 26,
and that they were all signed as being issued at 7:30 p.m

On cross-exam nation, M. Cook identified the previous shift
foreman as Arlie Bush and he stated that the miner machine in
guestion had not operated at the face as of 3:30 p.m on August
26. M. Cook did not believe that the machi ne could have renmai ned
"hot" fromthat time until 7:30 p.m when the citation was issued
by M. Money. M. Cook conceded that the shift report (Exhibit
R-1) was filled out after the issuance of the citation in
question (Tr. 60-95).

Petitioner recalled Inspector Mooney in rebuttal, and he
testified that he is famliar with emulsion oil, but saw none
sprayed all over the miner on the day in question. |In response
to ny questions, he stated that he did not know whether the m ner
machi ne had a broken hose, and at the tine he | ooked into the
not or conpartnment the engi ne was not running. He also indicated
that due to the packing of the assunulations at a depth of sone
four inches inside the notor conpartnment, there is no way that a
broken mi ner hose used for one shift could have caused those
accumul ations over that one shift. He also did not believe that
all of the accunulations inside the machi ne coul d have occurred
fromthe i mediate previous shift. Wen he first |ooked into the
machi ne and observed the accumul ati ons, the m ner operator was
present, and after he (Money) "tagged" the machi ne, he then
encountered M. Cook (Tr. 95-100).

On cross-exam nation, M. Money stated that the packed
accumul ations led himto believe that the coal was m xed with oi
and that it packed in over a period of tinme. He conceded that he
did not use the term "packed" or "conpacted"” in the citation or
his inspector's statement. He also stated that had he observed
only | oose coal on the outside of the nmachi ne which had just been
idled he would not issue a citation, but if he finds it inside
the machine and there is an indication that it has accunul at ed,
he would (Tr. 101-102). He explained that the machine in
guesti on had not accumul ated coal over the one shift but that it
had been left fromone shift to another w thout being cl eaned.
Under the clean-up plan, the machi ne should be cl eaned "as
needed" and that judgnment is made by the section supervisor. In
response to bench questions, M. Mponey summed up the crux of the
citation he issued as follows (Tr. 103-104):
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JUDGE KOQUTRAS: M. Mooney, | got the distinct inpression what
your concern was is that you saw evidence that this four inches
of accunul ation that had built up inside on the notor of the
conti nuous mner had been a condition that existed for God knows
how many previous shifts and nobody ever paid any attention to
it, because it was accunul ations of four inches.

| got the distinct inpression fromyour testinony that
it had been sonething that had been built up and built
up and built up and caked on there conbined with oi
and what have you that made it adhere together and it
was caked on there four inches. And when M. Cook

di scovered the broken hydraulic hose, he had to have
his people go in and clean all that stuff off there
bef ore they coul d nake repairs.

THE WTNESS: Yes, sir.
JUDGE KOUTRAS: |s that what it is?
THE W TNESS: Yes.

JUDGE KOQUTRAS: Now, the story I'mgetting from M.
Cook is no, that's not the case. The accunul ations the
i nspector was tal king about are sonething that just
happened fromthe natural cutting action of the

machi ne. "It happens all the time, Judge." Sure, he
nmeasured four inches. W have six inches, we have

twel ve inches while we're operating.

THE WTNESS: He had to renove the coal. Wat he was
saying, | think, he had to renove the coal before he
could repair the nmachine, and the coal dust out of the
conpart nent.

JUDGE KOQUTRAS: How about this grease and oil, did you
attribute that to sonething other than the oil |eak
when you | ooked at it?

THE WTNESS: No, sir, | thought that was over a period
of time; really, | did.

JUDGE KQUTRAS: So, the grease and oil you're tal king
about in your citation is not the sane hydraulic oi

M. Cook is talking about?

THE WTNESS: No. You know, | didn't know about the
bust ed hose, the burst hose.

Fi ndi ngs and Concl usi ons
Fact of Violation

Respondent is charged with a violation of the provisions of
30 C.F.R [75.400, which provides as follows: "Coal dust,



i ncluding float coal dust deposited on rock-dusted surfaces,

| oose coal, and other conbustible materials, shall be cleaned up
and not be permitted to accunulate in active workings, or on

el ectric equi pnent therein.”
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Wth respect to the question as to whether the evidence adduced
in this proceeding supports a finding that the respondent
violated the provision of 30 C F.R [75.400, as charged by the
i nspector, | take note of the fact that the Commssion, in Add
Ben Coal Conpany, 1 FMSHRC 1954, 1 BNA MBHC 2241, 1979 CCH CSHD
24,084 (1979), held that "the | anguage of the standard, its
| egi slative history, and the general purpose of the Act all point
to a holding that the standard is violated when an accunul ati on
of combustible materials exist,”" 1 FMSHRC at 1956. At page 1957
of that decision, the Commi ssion also stated that section 75.400
is "directed at preventing accunulations in the first instance,
not at cleaning up the materials within a reasonabl e period of
time after they have accunmul ated.” See al so, MSHA v.
C.C C - Ponpey Coal Company, Inc., Docket No. PIKE 79-125-P
deci ded by the Conm ssion on June 12, 1980, remanding the case to
the judge to apply its holding in Ad Ben

In its post-hearing brief, petitioner argues that the
testinmony by the inspector, as well as the testinony of
respondent's section foreman Cook supports the inspector's
findings that accumul ati ons of coal, coal dust, and grease and
oil in the inner workings of the continuous mner in question did
in fact exist at the tine the inspector issued his citation. In
addition, petitioner relies on the Comm ssion's decision in
Secretary of Labor v. A d Ben Coal Conpany, 2 MSHC 1017 (1979),
and Secretary of Labor v. C. C C -Ponpey Coal Company, Docket No.
Pl KE 79-125-P, decided by the Comm ssion on June 12, 1980,
remanded to Judge Steffey for application of the principles set
forth in Ad Ben

Petitioner asserts that the fact that the continuous m ner
may have been out of service makes no difference since the
standard sinply prohibits accunul ati ons on el ectrical equi prent
and there is no requirenment that such electrical equi pnent be in
service or even energized. Even so, on the facts in this case,
petitioner asserts that the continuous nminer trailing cable had
power and that the lights were on. In addition, petitioner
points to the fact that even accepting the testinony of foreman
Cook that the machi ne had a broken hose, |nspector Money tagged
it out and took it out of service when he | ooked inside the
machi ne and found the accumul ati ons which he cited, and that the
i nspector took it out of service because in his judgnent it
needed to be cl eaned.

In its post-hearing brief, respondent cites the cases of
Zi egl er Coal Company, 3 IBNMA 366 (1974), and Pl ateau M ning
Conmpany, 2 IBMA 303 (1973), in support of its argunment that
citations should be issued for accunul ations of oil and grease on
a piece of equi pment which had been taken out of service and was
being cleaned at the tine the violation is cited. Even though
the conti nuous mning machine in the instant case nay have been
defective because of the presence of accunul ati ons of grease and
coal, respondent nmaintains that it has denonstrated by a
preponder ance of the evidence that the m ner was under repair
(bei ng cleaned), and in support of this conclusion respondent
relies on the testinmony of M. Cook as well as his shift report



(Exhibit R-1).
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Respondent al so argues that coal accumul ati ons on m ni ng nmachi nes
used at the face during mning are unavoi dabl e and are inherent
in the nature of the coal mning business. Wile conceding that
the intent of section 75.400 is to prevent coal accumul ations
which are left fromshift to shift w thout being cleaned up
respondent nonetheless maintains that in this case the m ner was
down and being cleaned at the tinme the i nspector observed it.
Citing the testinony of section foreman Cook, respondent
mai ntains that he had a clearer recollection of the events in
guestion than did I nspector Mooney.

Respondent's reliance on the Ziegler and Pl at eau deci si ons
by the forner Board of M ne Operations Appeals as a defense to
the citation issued in this case is rejected. Those cases dealt
with withdrawal orders issued by mine inspectors for defective
equi pment. In the instant case, the respondent is charged with a
violation of section 75.400, which deals w th accunul ati ons of
conbustible materials and not with a citation for any defects in

the machine. | conclude and find that the Conmi ssion's decisions
in Od Ben and C C. C. -Ponmpey Coal Conpany are controlling and
applicable to the facts presented in this case. In Ad Ben

whil e the Conmm ssion accepted the fact sone spillage of
conbustible materials may be inevitable in mning operations, it
al so found that an accunul ati on of such materials were in fact
present and did exist in that case and that the mne operator did
not dispute those facts.

| accept the testinony of Inspector Money that he tagged
the machi ne out after finding the accumul ati ons of coal, coa
dust, grease and oil caked around the engi ne conpartnment, and
conclude and find that |nspector Money took that course of
action because of the accumul ati ons and not because of any broken
hose. Al though a broken hose may have contributed to the caking
of the accumul ations, the anounts neasured by M. NMboney
reasonably support an inference that the accunul ated conbusti bl e
materials had been permitted to exist for at |east severa
working shifts prior to his inspection. In this case, while the
record reflects that the shift foreman prior to M. Cook's shift
purportedly told M. Cook about a defective hydraulic hose on the
"of f-side"” of the machine, and the machi ne operator was at or
near the machi ne when the inspector |ooked into the notor
conpartnment, neither of these individuals were produced by the
respondent at the hearing to testify. Although M. Cook's
"foreman's report"”, exhibit R 1, reflects that the m ner machine
was down at the start of his shift from4:30 to 6:00 p.m because
of a "broken suction hose", it also reflects that it was "stil
down" from6:00 to 11:15 p. m, because the inspector believed it
needed cleaning. As correctly pointed out by petitioner inits
brief, M. Cook's report was filled in after the fact, and the
previous shift foreman was not called to substantiate any cl ai ns
by the respondent that the mner had been idled during the day
shift because of any broken hose.

After careful review and consideration of all of the
testimony and evi dence adduced in this case, | conclude and find
that the petitioner has the better part of the argunent and that



it has proved a violation of section 75.400 by a preponderance of
the evidence and the citation is AFFI RVED.
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Si ze of Business and Effect of Cvil Penalty on Respondent's
Ability to Remain in Business.

The parties stipulated that the assessnment of an appropriate
civil penalty in this case will not adversely affect the
respondent's ability to remain in business, and | adopt this as
my finding in this case. Wth regard to the respondent’'s size of
busi ness, the parties stipulated that respondent’'s annual 1980
coal production was approxi mately 259,001 tons, and | consider
this to be a medi um size nining operation

In its post-hearing brief, petitioner's counsel argues that
| shoul d consi der the annual production tonnage of 3,258,781 for
t he Youngstown M ne Corporation, the parent conpany, in any
determ nati on of the size of the respondent. This argunment is
rejected. Petitioner stipulated to respondent’'s annua
production during the relevant tinme period and counse
specifically stated at the hearing that he was in agreenent that
an annual production of 259,000 would place the mne in the smal
or mediumrange (Tr. 7).

Good Faith Conpliance

The record reflects that respondent took i medi ate steps to
abate the citation and to assign nen to clean the accunul ati ons
frominside the mner in question. This is indicative of rapid
good faith conpliance on respondent's part and that fact is
reflected in the civil penalty which |I have assessed for the
citation in question

Gavity

Al t hough | consider accunul ati ons of conbustible materials
on electrical machi nes or conponents to be serious matters, on
the facts presented in this case the gravity of the conditions
cited is tenpered sonewhat by the fact that the m ner machi ne was
not in operation and that coal was not being mned. |In addition
petitioner has not rebutted the testinony by the respondent that
the fire resistant enmulsion oil used in the mner does afford
some protection against any possible fire. Under the
circunstances | conclude that the gravity connected with this
citation was | ow

Negl i gence

Since | have concluded that the accumul ations cited by the
i nspector were permtted to exist over a period of time, | rnust
al so conclude that the respondent was negligent for failure to
exerci se reasonable care to correct the condition resulting in
the violation. Accordingly, I find that the violation resulted
fromrespondent's ordi nary negligence.

H story of Prior Violations

The parties stipulated that for the 13-nmonth period prior to
the i ssuance of the citation in question respondent had a history



of
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501 assessed violations. Although petitioner presented no
details or argunents concerning this history, for a mne of its
size, 501 violations over a span of 13 nonths is not a good
conpliance record. Accordingly, this reflected in the penalty
assessnent made by nme in this case.

Penalty Assessnent and Order

On the basis of the foregoing findings and concl usi ons, and
taking into account the requirenments of section 110(i) of the
Act, | conclude and find that a civil penalty assessnent in the
amount of $1,000 is reasonabl e and appropriate for the citation
which | have affirned, and respondent IS ORDERED to pay the
assessed penalty within thirty (30) days of the date of this
deci si on and order. Upon receipt of payment by the petitioner
this case is DI SM SSED

Ceorge A. Koutras
Admi ni strative Law Judge



